
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

Application: Niagara Charter School 
Novak Darci - darcinovak@niagaracharter.org 
2020-2021 Annual Report 

Entry 1 School Info and Cover Page 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Each Annual Report begins with a completed School Information and Cover Page. The information is 
collected in a survey format within Annual Report portal. When entering information in the portal, some 
of the following items may not appear, depending on your authorizer and/or your responses to related 
items. 

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for the 2020-2021 school year are not required 

to complete or submit an annual report this year). 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your school's authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this 

cover page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2021) or you may 

not be assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 400701860890 

1 / 38 
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a1. Popular School Name 

(No response) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of June 30th, 2021) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of June 30, 2021 or you may not be assigned the correct tasks. 

BOARD OF REGENTS 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION 

NIAGARA-WHEATFIELD CSD 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 

8/2005 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION 

8/2006 
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f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

Niagara Charter School strives to develop each student's character through engaging and challenging 

academic work. Our school believes that academic success is built on strong character qualities of 
collaboration, perseverance, responsibility, and compassion. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools only) 

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Briefly describe each Key Design Elements (KDE) as presented in the schools 

approved charter. KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the 

school’s mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. 

EL Education's five Core Practices: KDE 1 

1. Curriculum 

Academically rigorous learning expeditions, case 

studies, projects, fieldwork, and service learning 

inspire students to think and work as professional 
do, 
contributing high quality work to authentic 

audiences beyond the classroom. 
2. Instruction 

Our classrooms are alive with discovery, inquiry, 
and critical thinking, problem solving, and 

collaboration. Teachers talk less. Students talk and 

think more. 
3. Assessment 
Our leaders, teachers, and student embrace the 

power of student engaged assessment practices to 

build student ownership of learning, focus students 

on 

reaching standards based learning targets, and 

drive achievement. 
4. Culture & Character 
Our school builds a culture of respect, 
responsibility, courage, and kindness, where 

students and adults are committed to quality work 
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and citizenship. 
5. Leadership 

School leaders build a cohesive school vision 

focused on student achievement and continuous 

improvement. 

Habits of Scholarship: 
Niagara Charter School's Habits of Scholarship 

name the specific characteristics that support 
student achievement. They aid students in 

developing study skills, time management skills, 
persistence, self awareness, 
and the ability to seek feedback and assistance. 

The Habits of Scholarship are described using the 

acronym PRIDE: 

Perseverance: I keep trying 

Respect: I value myself and others 

Integrity: I am honest with myself and others 

Dedication: I am committed to our PRIDE values 

Excellence: I push myself to do more than I thought 
possible 

Niagara Charter School offers an extended school 
day: 

The school day is 7 hours in length, with students 

arriving at 8:55 am and dismissing at 4:00 pm. 

Enrichment and Remediation time: 
Niagara Charter School offers enrichment and 

remediation programs for students. Through 

remediation, teachers give students extra 

instruction that is meant to help increase their 
proficiency in specific content areas. 

Enrichment work is directed to creative and critical 
thinking skills in ELA and technology. The extended 

school day allows for an hour of enrichment and 

remediation each day. 

(No response) 

(No response) 

KDE 2 

KDE 3 

KDE 4 

KDE 5 

KDE 6 
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350 

337 

KDE 7 (No response) 

KDE 8 (No response) 

KDE 9 (No response) 

KDE 10 (No response) 

Need additional space for variables 

No 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

www.niagaracharter.org 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT ON JUNE 30, 2021 (exclude Pre-K program enrollment) 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2020-2021 (exclude Pre-K program students) 

Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 
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l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

No 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2021-2022? 

No, just one site. 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Phone Number District/CSD 

Address 

2077 Lockport Niagara-Site 1 7162974520 Road Wheatfield 

Grades to be 

Served at Site 

for coming 

year (K-5, 6-9, 
etc.) 

Receives 

Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades 

(If yes, enter 
the appropriate 

grades. If no, 
enter No). 

K-6 NO 
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address 

Darci Novak 716-297-4520 
darcinovak@niagar 
acharter.org 

Darci Novak 

Darci Novak 

James C. 
Muffoletto 

716-856-3700 
muffoletto@msn.c 

om 

Christie Granto 716-297-4520 
christiegranto@nia 

garacharter.org 

Darci Novak 

School Leader 

Operational Leader 

Compliance 

Contact 

Complaint Contact 

DASA Coordinator 

Phone Contact for 
After Hours 

Emergencies 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-located) space or in private space? 

Private Space 

7 / 38 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report 

for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired 

certificate of occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in 

district space (NYC co-locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of 

occupancy, and a copy of the current annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on 

or after July 1, 2021. 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

NCS Operating Permit.pdf 

Filename: NCS Operating Permit.pdf Size: 13.8 kB 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

NCS Fire and Safety Inspection.pdf 

Filename: NCS Fire and Safety Inspection.pdf Size: 18.7 kB 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2020-2021 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending material and non-material charter revisions). 

Yes 

8 / 38 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

1 

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions 

Category (Select 
Best Description) 

Change in 

schedule/calendar 

Change in mission, Realigned mission 

2 vision or and vission 

philosophy statements 

3 

4 

5 

Specific Revision 

(150 word limit) 

Shortened school 
year to match 

district of 
residence 

Date Approved by 

BOT (if applicable) 
Date Approved by 

Authorizer (if 
applicable) 

More revisions to add? 

No 

o. Has your school's Board of Trustee's approved a budget for the 2020-2021 FY? 

(No response) 

ATTESTATIONS 

9 / 38 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

p. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Darci Novak 

Position Chief Academic Officer 

Phone/Extension 716-297-4520-7224 

Email darcinovak@niagaracharter.org 

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) 

below attest that our school has reviewed, understands and will comply with the employee 

clearance and fingerprint requirements as outlined in Entry 10 and found in the NYSED CSO 

Fingerprint Clearance Oct 2019 Memo. Click YES to agree. 

Responses Selected: 

Yes 

q. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) 

below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this 

charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal, 

State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any information in any part 

of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds 

for the revocation of our charter. Click YES to agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the 

stylus on your mobile device to sign your name). 

Responses Selected: 

Yes 
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Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 

Jul 28 2021 

Thank you. 

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions 
Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools 

For the 2020-2021 school year, any academic or 
organization goals that cannot be evaluated due to school 
closure resulting in a lack of data and changes in testing, 

11 / 38 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

surveying, and other usual practices should be reported as 
“N/A”. Deadline is November 1, 2021. 
PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is
marked optional for administrative purposes only. 
Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents-authorized and NYCDOE-authorized charter schools only. 

Complete the tables provided. List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved 

charter, and indicate whether the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all 
goals no later than November 2, 2021. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

For the 2020-2021 school year, any academic goals
that cannot be evaluated due to school closure 
resulting in a lack of data and changes in testing, 
surveying, and other usual practices should be 
reported as “N/A”. 

12 / 38 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

2020-2021 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Academic Goal 1 

Academic Goal 2 

Academic Goal 3 

Academic Goal 4 

Academic Goal 5 

Academic Goal 6 

Academic Goal 7 

Academic Goal 8 

Academic Goal 9 

Academic Goal 10 

Measure Used to 

Evaluate Progress 

Toward Attainment 
of Goal 

Goal - Met, Not If not met, 
Met or Unable to describe efforts 

Assess the school will take 

to meet goal. If 
unable to assess 

goal, type N/A for 
Not Applicable 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/.a 

2. Do have more academic goals to add? 

No 

4. ORGANIZATION GOALS 

For the 2020-2021 school year, any organization
goals that cannot be evaluated due to school closure
resulting in a lack of data and changes in testing, 
surveying, and other usual practices should be 
reported as “N/A”. 

13 / 38 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

2020-2021 Progress Toward Attainment of Organization Goals 

Organizational 
Goal 

Org Goal 1 

Org Goal 2 

Org Goal 3 

Org Goal 4 

Org Goal 5 

Org Goal 6 

Org Goal 7 

Org Goal 8 

Org Goal 9 

Org Goal 10 

Org Goal 11 

Org Goal 12 

Org Goal 13 

Org Goal 14 

Org Goal 15 

Org Goal 16 

Org Goal 17 

Org Goal 18 

Org Goal 19 

Org Goal 20 

Measure Used to 

Evaluate Progress 

Goal - Met, Not If not met, 
Met, or Unable to describe efforts 

Assess the school will take 

to meet goal. If 
unable to assess 

goal, type N/A for 
Not Applicable 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 
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5. Do have more organizational goals to add? 

No 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

2020-2021 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals 

Financial Goal 1 

Financial Goal 2 

Financial Goal 3 

Financial Goal 4 

Financial Goal 5 

Measure Used to 

Evaluate Progress 

Goal - Met, Not If not met, 
Met, or Partially describe efforts 

Met the school will take 

to meet goal. 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

7. Do have more financial goals to add? 

No 

Thank you. 

Entry 4 - Audited Financial Statements 

Completed Oct 30 2021 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

ALL SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the financial statements in .pdf format into the 
SUNY Epicenter system no later than November 1, 2021. SUNY CSI will forward to NYSED CSO. 

ALL Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools must upload final, audited 
financial statements to the Annual Report Portal no later than November 1, 2021. Upload the 
independent auditor’s report, any advisory and/or management letter, and the internal controls report as 
one submission, combined into a .PDF file, ensuring that security features such as password protection 

15 / 38 



	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

are turned off. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

Audited Statements 2020-21 FY(Niagara Charter School Final) 

Filename: Audited Statements 2020 21 FYNiagar 8WCrcj2.pdf Size: 342.5 kB 

Entry 4b – Audited Financial Report Template (BOR/NYC/BOE) 
Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions - Regents-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Regents-authorized schools must download and complete the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited 
Financial Report Template” from the online portal or the website at 2020-2021 Charter School Annual 
Report webpage. Upload the completed file in Excel format. Due November 1, 2021. 

Education Corporations with more than one school should complete the Excel spreadsheet for 
the Education Corporation as a whole, not for the individual schools. Please submit the same 
Excel spreadsheet for each of the schools. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

Niagara CS_BEDS-400701860890_2020-21 

Filename: Niagara CS BEDS 400701860890 2020 21.xlsx Size: 75.3 kB 

Entry 4c – Additional Financial Documents 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions - Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must upload financial 
documents in this section by November 1, 2021. The items listed below should be uploaded, with an 
explanation if not applicable or available. For example, a “federal Single Audit was not required because 
the school did not expend federal funds of more than the $750,000 Threshold.” 

1. Advisory and/or Management letter 
2. Federal Single Audit 
3. CSP Agreed-Upon Procedure Report 
4. Evidence of Required Escrow Account for each school[1] 
5. Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations 

[1] Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the escrow account per 
school is $100,000. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

Annual Report to NYS 2020-21 Entry 4c info (Niagara Charter Schl) 

Filename: Annual Report to NYS 2020 21 Entry KWcVKIM.docx Size: 13.2 kB 
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Entry 4d - Financial Services Contact Information 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions: Please enter the contact information for school staff, firms or other entities providing 
financial services to the education corporation by November 1, 2021. 

Form for "Financial Services Contact Information" 

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information 

School Based Fiscal 
Contact Name 

School Based Fiscal 
Contact Email 

Timothy Hyland 

School Based Fiscal 
Contact Phone 

2. Audit Firm Contact Information 

School Audit 
Contact Name 

School Audit 
Contact Email 

School Audit 
Contact Phone 

Years Working With 

This Audit Firm 

EFPR Group, LLP 6 

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced financial 

services firm. 

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years With 

Person Address Firm 

Entry 5 – Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget 
Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions - Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools should upload a 
copy of the school’s FY21 Budget using the 2021-2022 Projected Annual Budget template in the portal or 
from the Annual Report website by November 1, 2021. 

The assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is self-

17 / 38 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

explanatory. Where applicable, reference the page number or section in the application narrative that 
indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference the applicable 
page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 

Instructions - SUNY authorized charter schools should download the 2021-2022 Budget and 
Quarterly Report Template on the SUNY website or Epicenter and upload the completed template into the 
portal by November 1, 2021. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

BudgetTemplate 2021-22 for NYS (1) 

Filename: BudgetTemplate 2021 22 for NYS 1.xlsx Size: 37.6 kB 

Entry 6 – Board of Trustees Disclosure of Financial Interest 
Form 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Required of ALL Charter Schools by August 2 

Each member of the charter school’s Board of Trustees who served on a charter school education 
corporation governing one or more charter schools for any period during the 2020-2021 school year must 
complete a signed: 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Schools: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form 
SUNY- Authorized Charter Schools: SUNY Trustee Financial Disclosure Form 

All completed forms must be collected and uploaded in .PDF format for each individual member. If a 
trustee is not able or available to complete the form by the deadline, the education corporation 
is responsible for doing so on behalf of the trustee. (Forms completed from past years will not be 
accepted). 

Trustees serving on an education corporation that governs more than one school are not required to 
complete a separate disclosure for each school governed by the education corporation. In the Disclosure 
of Financial Interest Form, trustees must disclose information relevant to any of the schools served by the 
governing education corporation. Note: Docusign is accepted. 

DOC011422-01142022100610 

Filename: DOC011422 01142022100610.pdf Size: 634.8 kB 

Entry 7 BOT Membership Table 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions 

Required of All charter schools 
ALL charter schools or education corporations governing multiple schools must complete the Board of 
Trustees Membership Table within the online portal. Please be sure to include and identify parents who 
are members of the Board of Trustees and indicate whether parents are voting or non-voting members. 
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Entry 7 BOT Table 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all --VOTING and NON-VOTING-- trustees. 

1. 2020-2021 Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Trustee Trustee Position 

Name Email on the 

Address Board 

James 

Muffolet Chair 
to 

Amy Vice Meshula Chair m 

Ricky Treasure 

Scott r 

Mary Secretar Scheele y r 

Commit 
tee 

Affiliatio 

ns 

Executiv 

e 

Finance 

Governa 

nce 

Academ 

ic 

Executiv 

e 

Finance 

Governa 

nce 

Executiv 

e 

Academ 

ic 

Voting 

Member 
Per By-
Laws 

(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 

Served 

6 

2 

5 

5 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 

(MM/DD 

/YYYY) 

07/01/2 

019 

07/01/2 

019 

07/01/2 

020 

07/01/2 

020 

End 

Date of 
Current 
Term 

(MM/DD 

/YYYY) 

06/30/2 

022 

06/30/2 

022 

06/30/2 

023 

06/30/2 

023 

Board 

Meeting 

s 

Attende 

d 

During 

2020-
2021 

12 

11 

11 

12 
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5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Judith Trustee/ DiCamill Member o 

Lauren Parent Howe Rep Nalls 

Christin Parent e Smith- Rep Koziel 

Academ 

ic 
Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

2 

3 

2 

07/01/2 

020 

07/01/2 

021 

07/01/2 

021 

06/30/2 9 023 

06/30/2 12 022 

06/30/2 12 022 

1a. Are there more than 9 members of the Board of Trustees? 

No 
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12 

12 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response relative to 

all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on June 30, 2021 

b.Total Number of Members Added During 2020-
2021 

c. Total Number of Members who Departed during 

2020-2021 

d.Total Number of members, as set in Bylaws, 
Resolution or Minutes 

7 

1 

0 

7 

3. Number of Board meetings held during 2020-2021 

4. Number of Board meetings scheduled for 2021-2022 

Thank you. 

Entry 8 Board Meeting Minutes 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions - Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Schools ONLY 

Schools must upload a complete set of monthly board meeting minutes (July 2020-June 2021), which 
should match the number of meetings held during the 2020-2021 school year, as indicated in the above 
table. The minutes provided must be the final version approved by the school’s Board of Trustees and 
may be uploaded individually or as one single combined file. Board meeting minutes must be submitted 
by August 2, 2021. 
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NCS 2020-2021 board meeting minutes 

Filename: NCS 2020 2021 board meeting minutes.pdf Size: 1.4 MB 

Entry 9 Enrollment & Retention 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions for submitting Enrollment and Retention Efforts 
ALL charter schools must complete this section. Describe the good 
faith efforts the charter school has made in 2020-2021 toward meeting 
targets to attract and retain the enrollment of Students with Disabilities 
(SWDs), English Language Learners (ELLs), and students who are 
economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for 
meeting or making progress toward meeting its enrollment and retention 
targets in 2021-2022. 

Entry 9 Enrollment and Retention of Special
Populations 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2020-2021 toward 

meeting targets to attract and retain enrollment of students with disabilities, 
English language learners, and students who are economically 

disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or 
making progress toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 

2021-2022. 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 

2020-2021 

Describe Recruitment Plans in 

2021-2022 

NCS staffs a Community Liaison 

to focus on recruitment efforts. 
Some of the current recruitment 

NCS staffs a Community Liaison 

to focus on recruitment efforts. 
Some of the current recruitment 
plans include: 
-Distribution of brochures and 

school information to parents 

and outside businesses and 
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Economically Disadvantaged 

plans include: 
-Distribution of brochures and 

school information to parents 

and outside businesses and 

agencies 

-Scheduled meetings with local 
Pre-K and Head Start programs 

-Building tours available 

throughout the school year; 
virtual tour are also available 

-Announcements and 

advertisements in local papers 

such as the Niagara Gazette, 
Lockport Union Sun & Journal, 
Niagara Wheatfield Tribune, 
Lewiston Sentinel, WNY Family 

Magazine, and The Challenger 
-Radio advertisements and bus 

bench advertisements 

-Applications are easily 

accessible to parents via the 

school's website; applications 

can be completed online and are 

sent directly to the school's 

Community Liaison 

-All recruitment efforts target 
special populations, including 

economically disadvantaged 

families 

NCS staffs a Community Liaison 

to focus on recruitment efforts. 
Some of the current recruitment 
plans include: 
-Distribution of brochures and 

school information to parents 

and outside businesses and 

agencies 

-Scheduled meetings with local 
Pre-K and Head Start programs 

-Building tours available 

throughout the school year; 
virtual tour are also available 

-Announcements and 

advertisements in local papers 

such as the Niagara Gazette, 
Lockport Union Sun & Journal, 
Niagara Wheatfield Tribune, 
Lewiston Sentinel, WNY Family 

Magazine, and The Challenger 
-Radio advertisements and bus 

bench advertisements 

-Applications are easily 

accessible to parents via the 

school's website; applications 

can be completed online and are 

sent directly to the school's 

Community Liaison 

-All recruitment efforts target 
special populations, including 

economically disadvantaged 

families 

-The Community Liaison will 
attend various community events 

, and distribute information about 
the school to local health 

agencies 

-New promotional materials will 
be purchased in the 21/22 school 
year 

NCS staffs a Community Liaison 

to focus on recruitment efforts. 
Some of the current recruitment 
plans include: 
-Distribution of brochures and 

school information to parents 

and outside businesses and 

agencies 

-Scheduled meetings with local 
Pre-K and Head Start programs 

-Building tours available 
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English Language Learners 

agencies 

-Scheduled meetings with local 
Pre-K and Head Start programs 

-Building tours available 

throughout the school year; 
virtual tour are also available 

-Announcements and 

advertisements in local papers 

such as the Niagara Gazette, 
Lockport Union Sun & Journal, 
Niagara Wheatfield Tribune, 
Lewiston Sentinel, WNY Family 

Magazine, and The Challenger 
-Radio advertisements and bus 

bench advertisements 

-Applications are easily 

accessible to parents via the 

school's website; applications 

can be completed online and are 

sent directly to the school's 

Community Liaison 

-All recruitment efforts target 
special populations including ELL 

students 

-All recruitment materials are 

available in the student's home 

language 

NCS staffs a Community Liaison 

to focus on recruitment efforts. 
Some of the current recruitment 
plans include: 
-Distribution of brochures and 

school information to parents 

and outside businesses and 

agencies 

-Scheduled meetings with local 
Pre-K and Head Start programs 

-Building tours available 

throughout the school year; 
virtual tour are also available 

throughout the school year; 
virtual tour are also available 

-Announcements and 

advertisements in local papers 

such as the Niagara Gazette, 
Lockport Union Sun & Journal, 
Niagara Wheatfield Tribune, 
Lewiston Sentinel, WNY Family 

Magazine, and The Challenger 
-Radio advertisements and bus 

bench advertisements 

-Applications are easily 

accessible to parents via the 

school's website; applications 

can be completed online and are 

sent directly to the school's 

Community Liaison 

-All recruitment efforts target 
special populations including ELL 

students 

-All recruitment materials are 

available in the student's home 

language 

-The Community Liaison will 
attend various community events 

, and distribute information about 
the school to local health 

agencies 

-New promotional materials will 
be purchased in the 21/22 school 
year 

NCS staffs a Community Liaison 

to focus on recruitment efforts. 
Some of the current recruitment 
plans include: 
-Distribution of brochures and 

school information to parents 

and outside businesses and 

agencies 

-Scheduled meetings with local 
Pre-K and Head Start programs 

-Building tours available 

throughout the school year; 
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Students with Disabilities 

-Announcements and 

advertisements in local papers 

such as the Niagara Gazette, 
Lockport Union Sun & Journal, 
Niagara Wheatfield Tribune, 
Lewiston Sentinel, WNY Family 

Magazine, and The Challenger 
-Radio advertisements and bus 

bench advertisements 

-Applications are easily 

accessible to parents via the 

school's website; applications 

can be completed online and are 

sent directly to the school's 

Community Liaison 

-All recruitment efforts target 
special populations, including 

students with disabilities 

-Speech screenings are 

administered for all new 

kindergarteners are 

administered; an initial referral 
for special education services is 

sent to the district CSE for any 

students not passing the 

screening 

virtual tour are also available 

-Announcements and 

advertisements in local papers 

such as the Niagara Gazette, 
Lockport Union Sun & Journal, 
Niagara Wheatfield Tribune, 
Lewiston Sentinel, WNY Family 

Magazine, and The Challenger 
-Radio advertisements and bus 

bench advertisements 

-Applications are easily 

accessible to parents via the 

school's website; applications 

can be completed online and are 

sent directly to the school's 

Community Liaison 

-All recruitment efforts target 
special populations 

-The Community Liaison will 
attend various community events 

, and distribute information about 
the school to local health 

agencies 

-New promotional materials will 
be purchased in the 21/22 school 
year 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 

2020-2021 

The Community Liaison position 

is designed to work 

collaboratively with families 

providing support as needed. The 

Liaison communicates regularly 

with parents, addressing any 

concerns or issues in an effort to 

retain students year to year. In 
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Describe Retention Plans in 

2021-2022 

The Community Liaison position 

is designed to work 

collaboratively with families 

providing support as needed. The 

Liaison communicates regularly 

with parents, addressing any 

concerns or issues in an effort to 

retain students year to year. In 

addition, 
-Transportation is provided to all 
students at no cost to our 



	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	

Economically Disadvantaged 

addition, 
-Transportation is provided to all 
students at no cost to our 
families 

-Monies are allocated in the 

annual budget for families in 

need of assistance purchasing 

uniforms or supplies 

-All students receive free 

breakfast, lunch, and snack daily 

-Preference is given to currently 

enrolled students'	 siblings, so 

families do not have children 

attending different elementary 

schools 

-Every NCS teacher receives a 

classroom budget to purchase 

materials and resources for 
students 

-All NCS students received a 1:1 

Chromebook device, and 

hotspots were provided to 

families in need of internet 
service. 
-NCS employs two full time 

counselors and a school nurse 

The school maintains 

relationships with community 

agencies and social service 

agencies to support students and 

families 

The School began 

implementation of the Leader in 

Me to teach students 21st 
century leadership and life skills, 
and to create a culture of student 
empowerment based on the idea 

that every child can be a leader. 

families 

-Monies are allocated in the 

annual budget for families in 

need of assistance purchasing 

uniforms or supplies 

-All students receive free 

breakfast, lunch, and snack daily 

-Preference is given to currently 

enrolled students'	 siblings, so 

families do not have children 

attending different elementary 

schools 

-Every NCS teacher receives a 

classroom budget to purchase 

materials and resources for 
students 

-All NCS students received a 1:1 

Chromebook device, and 

hotspots were provided to 

families in need of internet 
service. 
-NCS employs two full time 

counselors and a school nurse 

The school maintains 

relationships with community 

agencies and social service 

agencies to support students and 

families 

The School will continue the 

implementation of the Leader in 

Me to teach students 21st 
century leadership and life skills, 
and to create a culture of student 
empowerment based on the idea 

that every child can be a leader. 

In the 21/22 school year, the 

school will participate in Primary 

Project to meet the social-
emotional and behavioral needs 

of students. 

The Community Liaison position 
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English Language Learners 

The Community Liaison position 

is designed to work 

collaboratively with families 

providing support as needed. The 

Liaison communicates regularly 

with parents, addressing any 

concerns or issues in an effort to 

retain students year to year. In 

addition, 
-Transportation is provided to all 
students at no cost to our 
families 

-Monies are allocated in the 

annual budget for families in 

need of assistance purchasing 

uniforms or supplies 

-All students receive free 

breakfast, lunch, and snack daily 

-Preference is given to currently 

enrolled students'	 siblings, so 

families do not have children 

attending different elementary 

schools 

-Every NCS teacher receives a 

classroom budget to purchase 

materials and resources for 
students 

-All NCS students received a 1:1 

Chromebook device, and 

hotspots were provided to 

families in need of internet 
service. 
-NCS employs two full time 

counselors and a school nurse 

All school services are available 

ion the student's home language. 

The school maintains relationship 

with the local BOCES, community 

agencies, and social service 

agencies to support students and 

families'	 ELL needs. 

is designed to work 

collaboratively with families 

providing support as needed. The 

Liaison communicates regularly 

with parents, addressing any 

concerns or issues in an effort to 

retain students year to year. In 

addition, 
-Transportation is provided to all 
students at no cost to our 
families 

-Monies are allocated in the 

annual budget for families in 

need of assistance purchasing 

uniforms or supplies 

-All students receive free 

breakfast, lunch, and snack daily 

-Preference is given to currently 

enrolled students'	 siblings, so 

families do not have children 

attending different elementary 

schools 

-Every NCS teacher receives a 

classroom budget to purchase 

materials and resources for 
students 

-All NCS students received a 1:1 

Chromebook device, and 

hotspots were provided to 

families in need of internet 
service. 
-NCS employs two full time 

counselors and a school nurse 

All school services are available 

ion the student's home language. 

The school maintains relationship 

with the local BOCES, community 

agencies, and social service 

agencies to support students and 

families'	 ELL needs. 

In the 21/22 school year, the 

school will employ a part-time 
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ELL teacher to support the needs 

of students. 

Students with Disabilities 

The Community Liaison position 

is designed to work 

collaboratively with families 

providing support as needed. The 

Liaison communicates regularly 

with parents, addressing any 

concerns or issues in an effort to 

retain students year to year. In 

addition, 
-Transportation is provided to all 
students at no cost to our 
families 

-Monies are allocated in the 

annual budget for families in 

need of assistance purchasing 

uniforms or supplies 

-All students receive free 

breakfast, lunch, and snack daily 

-Preference is given to currently 

enrolled students'	 siblings, so 

families do not have children 

attending different elementary 

schools 

-Every NCS teacher receives a 

classroom budget to purchase 

materials and resources for 
students 

-All NCS students received a 1:1 

Chromebook device, and 

hotspots were provided to 

families in need of internet 
service. 
-NCS employs two full time 

counselors and a school nurse 

All school services are available 

ion the student's home language. 

The Community Liaison position 

is designed to work 

collaboratively with families 

providing support as needed. The 

Liaison communicates regularly 

with parents, addressing any 

concerns or issues in an effort to 

retain students year to year. In 

addition, 
-Transportation is provided to all 
students at no cost to our 
families 

-Monies are allocated in the 

annual budget for families in 

need of assistance purchasing 

uniforms or supplies 

-All students receive free 

breakfast, lunch, and snack daily 

-Preference is given to currently 

enrolled students'	 siblings, so 

families do not have children 

attending different elementary 

schools 

-Every NCS teacher receives a 

classroom budget to purchase 

materials and resources for 
students 

-All NCS students received a 1:1 

Chromebook device, and 

hotspots were provided to 

families in need of internet 
service. 
-NCS employs two full time 

counselors and a school nurse 

All school services are available 

ion the student's home language. 

The school maintains relationship 

with the local BOCES, community 

agencies, and social service 
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The school maintains relationship agencies to support students and 

with the local BOCES, community 

agencies, and social service 

agencies to support students and 

families. 

Online trainings and workshops 

are provided through EPIC (Every 

Person Influences Children) 

NCS employs two full-time 

special education teachers and 

AIS support staff to support the 

needs of students with 

disabilities. The school conducts 

monthly Response to 

Intervention team meetings. 

families. 

Online trainings and workshops 

are provided through EPIC (Every 

Person Influences Children) 

NCS employs two full-time 

special education teachers and 

AIS support staff to support the 

needs of students with 

disabilities. In the 21/22 school 
year, the school will add two new 

positions-Reading Specialist and 

Intervention Teacher- to support 
the needs of student with 

disabilities. 
In addition, the school will 
continue to hold monthly 

Response to Intervention team 

meetings 

Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator Attrition 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Form for "Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator
Attrition" Revised to Employee Fingerprint
Requirements Attestation 
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A. TEACH System – Employee Clearance 

Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees[1] receive clearance through the NYSED Office 

of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) prior to employment. This includes 

paraprofessionals and other school personnel that are provided or assigned by the district of 

location, or related/contracted service providers. After an employee has been cleared, schools are 

required to maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all students, 
charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of individuals who have been 

denied clearance. Once the employees have been terminated, the school must terminate the request for 
clearance in the TEACH system. 

In the Annual Report, charter schools are asked to confirm that all employees have been cleared through 

the NYSED TEACH system; and, if denied clearance, confirm that the individual or employee has been 

removed from the TEACH system, and is not employed by the school. 

[1] Employees that must be cleared include, but are not limited to, teachers, administrative staff, janitors, 
security personnel and cafeteria workers, and other staff who are present when children are in the school 
building. This includes paraprofessionals and other school personnel that are provided or 

assigned by the district of location, as well as related/contracted service providers. See NYSED 

memorandum dated October 1, 2019 at 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf or visit the 

NYSED website at: http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html for more information 

regarding who must be fingerprinted. Also see, 8 NYCRR §87.2. 

30 / 38 

http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf


	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 						

B. Emergency Conditional Clearances 

Charter schools are strongly discouraged from using the emergency conditional clearance provisions for 
prospective employees. This is because the school must simultaneously request clearance through NYSED 

TEACH, and the school’s emergency conditional clearance of the employee terminates automatically once 

the school receives notification from NYSED regarding the clearance request. Status notification is provided 

for all prospective employees through the NYSED TEACH portal within 48 hours after the clearance request 
is submitted. Therefore, at most, a school’s emergency conditional clearance will be valid for only 48 hours 

after approval by the board. 

Schools are not permitted to renew or in any way re-establish a prospective employee’s emergency 

conditional clearance after status notification is sent by NYSED through the TEACH portal. 

Schools are asked to attest that they have reviewed and understand these requirements. More information 

can be found in the memo at 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf. 

Attestation 

Responses Selected: 

I hereby attest that the school has reviewed, understands, and will comply with these requirements. 

Entry 11 Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance with New 
York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified teachers are those 
not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established by the NYSED Commissioner of 
Education. 

Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each column. For example, a school 
with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

Entry 11 Uncertified Teachers 

School Name: 
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Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified
Teachers 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance 

with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified 

teachers are those not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established 

by the NYSED Commissioner of Education. Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count 

of teachers in each column. For example, a school with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time 

teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

If more than one line applies to a teacher, please include in only one FTE uncertified category. Please do 

not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides. 

CATEGORY A. 30% OR 5 UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS WHICHEVER IS LESS 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 

classroom teaching experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are 

tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June 

30, 2021) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years 

of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with 

exceptional business, professional, artistic, 
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2021) 

Total Category A: 5 or 30% whichever is less 

FTE Count 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0.0 
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CATEGORY B. PLUS FIVE UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS IN MATHEMATICS, SCIENCE, COMPUTER 

SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY OR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION. 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 

classroom teaching experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are 

tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June 

30, 2021) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years 

of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with 

exceptional business, professional, artistic, 
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2021) 

Total Category B: not to exceed 5 

FTE Count 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0.0 
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CATEGORY C: PLUS 5 ADDITIONAL UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 

classroom teaching experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are 

tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June 

30, 2021) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years 

of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with 

exceptional business, professional, artistic, 
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2021) 

Total Category C: not to exceed 5 

FTE Count 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0.0 

CATEGORY D: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCATEGORIZED, UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS 

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for 
that category) 

FTE Count 

Total Category D 0 

CATEGORY E: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF CERTIFIED TEACHERS 

FTE Count 

Total Category E 19 
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CATEGORY F: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF ALL TEACHERS 

Please do not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides. 

FTE Count 

Total Category F 19 

Thank you. 

Entry 12 Organization Chart 
Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Upload the 2020-2021 Organization Chart. The organization chart should include position titles and 
reporting relationships. Employee names should not appear on the chart 

Org Charter 2019-2020 

Filename: Org Charter 2019 2020.pdf Size: 212.2 kB 

Entry 13 School Calendar 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions for submitting School Calendar 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Given these uncertain and changing times, charter schools may or may not have a school calendar ready 
to upload by the submission deadline this year of August 2, 2021. If the charter school has a tentative 

calendar based on available information and guidance at the time, please submit with the August 2nd 

submission. Charter schools will be able to upload an updated school calendar into the portal at any time 
but no later than September 15, 2021. 

School calendars must meet the minimum instructional requirements as required of other public schools 
“… unless the school’s charter requires more instructional time than is required under the regulations.” 

Board of Regents-authorized charter schools are required to submit school calendars that clearly indicate 
the start and end date of the instructional year AND the number of instructional hours and/or 
instructional days for each month. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 
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Copy of 20-21 one page calendar with Instructional Days 

Filename: Copy of 20 21 one page calendar wit lerwWoI.pdf Size: 87.4 kB 

Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on School Website 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

Instructions 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. 
Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items: 

1. Most recently filed Annual Report (i.e., 2019-2020 Annual Report); 
2. Most recent board meeting notice, documents to be discussed at the meeting (if any), and 

webcast of Board meetings (if held virtually per Governor’s Executive Order); 
3. Link to New York State School Report Card; 
4. Lottery Notice announcing date of lottery; 
5. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy; 
6. District-wide safety plan and Authorizer-approved Discipline Policy (as per August 29, 

2019 Emergency Response Plan Memo); 
7. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and 
8. Subject matter list of FOIL records. 
9. Link to School Reopening Plan 

Form for Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on
School Website 

School Name: Niagara Charter School 
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Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required 

to submit item 5: Authorizer-approved DASA policy 

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its 

website. Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items: 

Link to Documents 

http://www.niagaracharterschool.org/wp-
1. Most Recent Annual Report (i.e., 2019-20) content/uploads/2021/06/NCS-Annual-Report-2019-

2020.pdf 

2. Most recent board meeting notice, documents to http://www.niagaracharterschool.org/meeting-
be discussed at the meeting (if any) announcement/ 

2a. Webcast of Board Meetings (per Governor's http://www.niagaracharterschool.org/virtual-board-
Executive Order) meetings/ 

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php? 

3. Link to NYS School Report Card instid=800000058977&year=2020&createreport= 

1&OverallStatus=1&section 1003=1&EMStatus=1 

http://www.niagaracharterschool.org/enrollment-4. Lottery Notice announcing date of lottery lottery/ 

5. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy (For Regents, http://www.niagaracharterschool.org/wp-
NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter content/uploads/2021/04/NIAGARA-CHARTER-
Schools ONLY); SCHOOL-POLICY-ADDENDUM-MANUAL.pdf 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1ABGKBE2civ 

6. District-wide Safety Plan rT8R-iJt9f6RsAqHu8oe7KcpR7O8IVU-k/edit? 

usp=sharing 

http://www.niagaracharterschool.org/wp-
6a. Authorizer-Approved Discipline Policy (as per content/uploads/2020/07/DOCS-796013-v1-
August 29, 2019 Emergency Response Plan Memo) Niagara Charter School -

Student Code of Conduct.pdf 

http://www.niagaracharterschool.org/wp-
7. Authorizer-Approved FOIL Policy content/uploads/2021/04/FOIL-Request-for-Niagara-

Charter-School.pdf 

http://www.niagaracharterschool.org/wp-
8. Subject matter list of FOIL records content/uploads/2021/04/NIAGARA-CHARTER-

SCHOOL-POLICY-ADDENDUM-MANUAL.pdf 
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Thank you. 

Entry 15 Staff Roster 

Completed Jan 14 2022 

INSTRUCTIONS 

Required of Regents-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Please click on the MS Excel Staff Roster Template and provide the following information for ANY and 
ALL instructional and non-instructional employees. 

•Full name for any and all employees 
•TEACH IDs for any and all employees 
•Using the drop down menu, select a role/position (or the best fit) for each employee in the charter 
school. (Please provide additional information to the Notes Section of the Staff Roster Template as 
necessary) 
•Date of hire and employment start dates 
•Number of years each employee has had in their respective professions 
•Number of years each employee has had in their current role in the charter school 
•Using the drop down menu, select the correct explanation as to why a teacher is teaching outside of 
their certification area. 

AnnualReportBoRStaffRoster_20-21_Niagara updated 1-13-22 

Filename: AnnualReportBoRStaffRoster 20 21 Cp8zlKd.xlsx Size: 44.5 kB 
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NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Annual Report Entry 4c – Additional Financial Documents 

1.) Advisory/Management Letter attached in File 
2.) Federal Single Audit – Not required for Fiscal Year 2020-21 as Niagara Charter School 

Grants did not meet $750,000 threshold 
3.) CSP Agreed-Upon Procedure Report – Not Applicable/Required for FY 2020-21 
4.) Evidence of Required Escrow Account - Attached in File is a copy of our Balance Sheet 

Page 1 on 10/28/21 per our Financial Records maintained in QuickBooks.  The Escrow 
account is circled showing a balance of $100,000.60 

5.) Corrective Action Plan for Audit Finding reported in Confidential Report to Board from 
our auditors – Corrective Action Plan is attached in file 

http:100,000.60
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

The Board of Trustees 

Niagara Charter School: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Niagara Charter School (the School) 

which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related 

statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related 

notes to financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 

free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the School’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we 

express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion. 



 

 

      

    

    

 

 

 

 

       

    

   

         

   

   

    

   

 

 

        
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of Niagara Charter School as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its 

net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 

27, 2021, on our consideration of Niagara Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 

agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 

testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 

not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Niagara Charter School’s internal control over 

financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Williamsville, New York 

October 27, 2021 
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NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Current assets: 

Cash 

Receivables 

Prepaid expenses 

Assets 

$ 

2021 

2,090,295 

569,976 

44,744 

2020 

2,963,129 

136,881 

60,065 

Total current assets 2,705,015 3,160,075 

Property and equipment, at cost 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

825,022 

(403,148) 

825,022 

(346,842) 

Net property and equipment 421,874 478,180 

Total assets $ 3,126,889 3,638,255 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued expenses: 

Payroll and payroll taxes 

Pension 

27,738 

205,330 

244,044 

43,490 

175,458 

208,510 

Total accrued expenses 449,374 383,968 

Total current liabilities 477,112 427,458 

Promissory note - paycheck protection program - 530,085 

Total liabilities 477,112 957,543 

Net assets without donor restrictions 2,649,777 2,680,712 

Commitments and contingency (notes 6 and 7) 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 3,126,889 3,638,255 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statements of Activities 

Years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Revenue: 

Public School Districts: 

Resident student enrollment 

Students with disabilities 

Other revenue from public school districts 

Grant income 

Grant income - paycheck protection program 

Contributions 

Other 

$  

2021 

3,973,669 

261,488 

48,403 

659,466 

530,085 

7,657 

18,502 

2020 

4,251,110 

287,669 

49,691 

183,326 

-

18,443 

27,803 

Total revenue 5,499,270 4,818,042 

Expenses: 

Program services: 

Regular education 

Special education 

4,989,912 

349,014 

4,087,785 

264,622 

Total program services 5,338,926 4,352,407 

Management and general 191,279 150,824 

Total expenses 5,530,205 4,503,231 

Change in net assets without donor restrictions (30,935) 314,811 

Net assets without donor restrictions at beginning of year 2,680,712 2,365,901 

Net assets without donor restrictions at end of year $  2,649,777 2,680,712 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

Year ended June 30, 2021 

with comparative totals for 2020 

Personnel services costs: 

Instructional personnel 

Administrative personnel 

Non-instructional personnel 

No. of 

positions 

41 

2 

10 

Regular 

education 

$ 1,494,653 

507,465 

86,421 

Program Services 

Special 

education 

103,281 

35,066 

5,972 

Total 

1,597,934 

542,531 

92,393 

Management 

and 

general 

62,664 

21,276 

3,623 

Total 

2021 

1,660,598 

563,807 

96,016 

2020 

1,442,875 

422,243 

107,137 

Total salaries 53 2,088,539 144,319 2,232,858 87,563 2,320,421 1,972,255 

Fringe and payroll taxes 

Office expense 

Printing and production 

Purchased services 

Telephone 

Meetings and travel 

Consulting fees 

Supplies 

Interest expense 

Professional fees 

Advertising 

Dues and subscriptions 

Insurance 

Licenses and permits 

Legal fees 

Occupancy 

Repairs and maintenance 

Staff development 

Utilities 

Garbage collection 

Health center 

Security 

Student transportation 

Depreciation 

Student activities and field trips 

Uncollectible aid from School Districts 

Miscellaneous 

743,776 

17,225 

15,696 

111,663 

6,802 

2,664 

110,371 

270,834 

83 

129,896 

16,963 

4,952 

26,291 

378 

23,928 

526,773 

248,440 

99,561 

27,645 

18,841 

4,780 

14,910 

248,977 

50,679 

16,007 

157,795 

5,443 

51,395 

1,190 

1,085 

7,716 

470 

184 

7,627 

18,715 

6 

8,976 

1,172 

342 

1,817 

26 

1,653 

36,400 

17,167 

6,880 

1,910 

1,302 

377 

1,030 

19,656 

3,502 

1,264 

12,457 

376 

795,171 

18,415 

16,781 

119,379 

7,272 

2,848 

117,998 

289,549 

89 

138,872 

18,135 

5,294 

28,108 

404 

25,581 

563,173 

265,607 

106,441 

29,555 

20,143 

5,157 

15,940 

268,633 

54,181 

17,271 

170,252 

5,819 

31,183 

722 

658 

4,682 

285 

112 

4,627 

11,355 

3 

5,446 

711 

208 

1,102 

16 

1,004 

22,085 

10,416 

4,174 

1,159 

790 

-

625 

-

2,125 

-

-

228 

826,354 

19,137 

17,439 

124,061 

7,557 

2,960 

122,625 

300,904 

92 

144,318 

18,846 

5,502 

29,210 

420 

26,585 

585,258 

276,023 

110,615 

30,714 

20,933 

5,157 

16,565 

268,633 

56,306 

17,271 

170,252 

6,047 

723,562 

15,424 

22,537 

-

11,176 

10,166 

82,764 

71,101 

55 

101,849 

19,715 

2,816 

45,705 

1,186 

28,793 

581,828 

213,513 

98,719 

41,241 

20,426 

8,339 

17,992 

252,231 

64,329 

35,028 

59,898 

583 

Total expenses 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

$ 4,989,912 349,014 5,338,926 191,279 5,530,205 4,503,231 
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NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

Year ended June 30, 2020 

Program Services 

Personnel services costs: 

Instructional personnel 

Administrative personnel 

Non-instructional personnel 

No. of 

positions 

44 

2 
9 

Regular 

education 

$ 1,306,786 

382,418 
97,032 

Special 

education 

83,621 

24,471 
6,209 

Total 

1,390,407 

406,889 
103,241 

Management 

and 

general 

52,468 

15,354 
3,896 

Total 

1,442,875 

422,243 
107,137 

Total salaries 55 1,786,236 114,301 1,900,537 71,718 1,972,255 

Fringe and payroll taxes 

Office expense 

Printing and production 

Telephone 

Meetings and travel 

Consulting fees 

Supplies 

Interest expense 

Professional fees 

Advertising 

Dues and subscriptions 

Insurance 

Licenses and permits 

Legal fees 

Occupancy 

Repairs and maintenance 

Staff development 

Utilities 

Garbage collection 

Health center 

Security 

Student transportation 

Depreciation 

Student activities and field trips 

Uncollectible aid from School Districts 

Miscellaneous 

655,317 

13,969 

20,411 

10,122 

9,207 

74,958 

64,395 

50 

92,243 

17,856 

2,550 

41,394 

1,074 

26,077 

526,951 

193,375 

89,408 

37,351 

18,499 

7,770 

16,295 

235,033 

58,262 

32,640 

55,814 

528 

41,934 

894 

1,306 

648 

589 

4,797 

4,121 

3 

5,903 

1,143 

163 

2,649 

69 

1,669 

33,720 

12,374 

5,721 

2,390 

1,184 

569 

1,043 

17,198 

3,728 

2,388 

4,084 

34 

697,251 

14,863 

21,717 

10,770 

9,796 

79,755 

68,516 

53 

98,146 

18,999 

2,713 

44,043 

1,143 

27,746 

560,671 

205,749 

95,129 

39,741 

19,683 

8,339 

17,338 

252,231 

61,990 

35,028 

59,898 

562 

26,311 

561 

820 

406 

370 

3,009 

2,585 

2 

3,703 

716 

103 

1,662 

43 

1,047 

21,157 

7,764 

3,590 

1,500 

743 

-

654 

-

2,339 

-

-

21 

723,562 

15,424 

22,537 

11,176 

10,166 

82,764 

71,101 

55 

101,849 

19,715 

2,816 

45,705 

1,186 

28,793 

581,828 

213,513 

98,719 

41,241 

20,426 

8,339 

17,992 

252,231 

64,329 

35,028 

59,898 

583 

Total expenses 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

$ 4,087,785 264,622 4,352,407 150,824 4,503,231 
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NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets without donor 

restrictions to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 

Grant income - paycheck protection program 

Changes in: 

Receivables 

Prepaid expenses 

Accounts payable 

Accrued expenses 

$ (30,935) 

56,306 

(530,085) 

(433,095) 

15,321 

(15,752) 

65,406 

314,811 

64,329 

-

131,002 

(4,989) 

(127,830) 

(49,288) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (872,834) 328,035 

Cash flows from investing activities - additions to property 

and equipment - (44,858) 

Cash flows from financing activities - proceeds from 

promissory note - 530,085 

Net change in cash (872,834) 813,262 

Cash at beginning of year 2,963,129 2,149,867 

Cash at end of year $ 2,090,295 2,963,129 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Nature of Activities 

Niagara Charter School (the School) was chartered by the Board of Regents of the 

University at the State of New York on July 21, 2005 for a term of five years pursuant to 

Article 56 of the New York State Education Law. The School has received a renewal of 

their charter which will expire on June 30, 2026. The School is a K-6 public school 

primarily funded through the Board of Education of the City School District of Niagara 

Falls. 

Charter schools receive state and Federal public-school funding and must meet all the same 

state and federal testing and learning requirements as public schools, yet they operate 

independently of the local school district, serving as their own local education agency. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 

accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America. 

(c) Basis of Presentation 

The School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to 

two classes of net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor 

restrictions. The School does not have any net assets with donor restrictions as of June 

30, 2021 and 2020. Accordingly, net assets of the School and changes therein are 

classified and reported as follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 

stipulations and may be used for any purpose designated by the School’s Board of 

Trustees. 

(d) Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual 

results could differ from those estimates. 

(e) Cash 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid debt 

instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

(f) Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentration of credit risk 

consist principally of cash accounts in financial institutions. Although the accounts 

exceed the federally insured deposit amount, management does not anticipate 

nonperformance by the financial institutions. 
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NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

(g) Receivables 

The School uses the allowance method to account for uncollectible receivables. There was 

no allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

(h) Capitalization, Depreciation and Amortization 

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or fair market value at the date of the gift in the 

case of donated property and equipment. If donors stipulate how long the assets must be 

used, the contributions are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence 

of such stipulations, contributions of property and equipment are recorded as net assets 

without donor restrictions. 

Depreciation and amortization are provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of 

depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives using the straight-line 

method. Improvements are capitalized, while expenditures for maintenance and repairs 

are charged to expense as incurred. Upon disposal of depreciable property and 

equipment, the appropriate property and equipment accounts are reduced by the related 

costs and accumulated depreciation or amortization. The resulting gains and losses are 

reflected in the statements of activities. 

(i) Public School District Revenue 

The School receives per pupil aid which is passed through several School Districts 

predominantly in Niagara County. The majority of this comes from the Niagara Falls 

City School District. New York State Education Department mandates the rate per 

pupil. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the per pupil rate was $11,931 and 

$12,371, respectively, for the Niagara Falls City School District. 

(j) Deferred Revenue and Revenue Recognition 

Grant awards accounted for as exchange transactions are recorded as revenue when 

expenditures have been incurred in compliance with the grant restrictions. Amounts 

unspent are recorded in the statements of financial position as deferred revenue. 

(k) Donated Equipment, Materials, Supplies and Personnel Services 

Donated equipment, materials and supplies are reflected in the financial statements based on 

the fair market value at the time of donation. 

Donated personnel services meeting the requirements for recognition in the financial 

statements were not material and have not been recorded. However, many individuals 

volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the School. 

9 



 
 

 

 

 

 

  
 
   

      

     

       

    

    

      

 
 
   

          

    

      

  

 
 
   

       

  
 
   

      

      

       

     

 
 
   

     

     

     

     

   

 

      

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

(l) Promises to Give 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give to the 

School. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net 

assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the year in which the 

contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as 

increases in net assets with donor restrictions depending on the nature of the restrictions.  

When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets 

without donor restrictions. 

(m) Expense Allocation 

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a 

functional basis in the statements of activities and in the statements of functional 

expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and 

supporting services benefited. Program related expenses and management and general 

expenses are allocated based on level of assistance by teachers and employees. 

(n) Subsequent Events 

The School has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the report which is the date 

the financial statements were available to be issued. 

(o) Risks and Uncertainties 

The United States is presently in the midst of a national health emergency related to the 

COVID-19 virus. The overall consequences of the COVID-19 on a national, regional 

and local level are unknown, but has the potential to result in a significant economic 

impact. The impact of this situation on the School and its future results and financial 

position is not presently determinable. 

(p) Income Taxes 

The School is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 

Revenue Code (the Code), therefore, no provision for income taxes is reflected in the 

financial statements. The School has been classified as a publicly supported 

organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a) of the Code. The 

School presently discloses or recognizes income tax positions based on management’s 
estimate of whether it is reasonably possible or probable that a liability has been incurred 

for unrecognized income taxes. Management has concluded that the School has taken 

no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment in its financial statements. U.S. Forms 

990 filed by the School are subject to examination by taxing authorities. 
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NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(2) Liquidity 

The School has $2,660,271 of financial assets available within one year of the statement of 

financial position date consisting of $2,090,295 of cash and equivalents and $569,976 of 

receivables. None of these financial assets are subject to donor or contractual restrictions 

that make them unavailable for general expenditures within one year of the statement of 

financial position date. 

(3) Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. A summary of property and equipment at June 30, 

2021 and 2020 is as follows: 

2021 2020 

Leasehold improvements $ 566,046 566,046 

Furniture and equipment 258,976 258,976 

825,022 825,022 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (403,148) (346,842) 

Net property and equipment $ 421,874 478,180 

(4) Promissory Note - Paycheck Protection Program 

On May 20, 2020, the School received a Small Business Administration (SBA) loan under the 

Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) in the amount of 

$530,085 with a 1% interest rate. 

Pursuant to the terms of the CARES Act rules and regulations, the School applied for the loan to 

be forgiven by the SBA.  On February 11, 2021, the School was notified by the SBA that the 

original loan has been forgiven in its entirety and, accordingly, has recorded loan 

forgiveness/grant income of $530,085 for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

(5) Pension Plans 

The School participates in the New York State Teachers’ Retirement System (NYSTRS), which 
is a cost-sharing multiple employer, public employees retirement system. NYSTRS offers a 

wide range of plans and benefits which are related to years of service and final average 

salary, vesting of retirement benefits, death and disability. 
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NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(5) Pension Plans, Continued 

NYSTRS is administered by the New York State Teachers’ Retirement Board and provides 

retirement, disability, withdrawal and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries as 

authorized by the Education Law and the Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of 

New York. NYSTRS issues a publicly available financial report that contains financial 

statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing 

to NYSTRS, 10 Corporate Woods Drive, Albany, New York 12211-2395. 

NYSTRS is noncontributory, except for employees who joined the System after July 27, 1976 

and prior to January 1, 2010, who contribute 3% of their salary, except that employees in 

NYSTRS more than ten years are no longer required to contribute. Those joining NYSTRS 

on or after January 1, 2010 are required to contribute 3.5% of their salary throughout their 

active membership. Pursuant to Article 11 of the Education Law, the New York State 

Teachers’ Retirement Board establishes rates annually for NYSTRS. 

The School is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The rates for NYSTRS 

were 9.53% and 8.86% of the annual covered payroll as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, 

respectively. Required annual contributions of $174,004 and $142,157 were paid to 

NYSTRS by the School for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

(6) Commitments 

(a) Lease Obligations 

The School leases its facility under an operating lease which expires in July 2026 subject to 

annual increases in the consumer price index for the Northeast Region over 2008 as the 

base year. The School has the option to extend the term of this lease for one five year 

interval. The lease will terminate on expiration or non-renewal of the School’s charter. 
In addition, the School leases a copier under a lease agreement expiring in July 2026.  

Rent expense amounted to $585,258 and $581,828 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 

2020, respectively. 

Minimum future payments for the five years following June 30, 2021 and thereafter are as 

follows: 

2022 $ 577,358 

2023 577,358 

2024 577,358 

2025 577,358 

2026 577,358 

Thereafter 571,679 

$ 3,458,469 

(b) Transportation Services Obligations 

The School has an agreement for bus transportation with a private carrier for its students.  

The agreement expired on June 30, 2021 and is currently under renegotiation. 

12 



 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

        

      

    

 

 

  

 

  

      

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NIAGARA CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(7) Contingency 

The School has received grants which are subject to audit by agencies of the state and Federal 

government. Such audits may result in disallowances and a request for a return of funds. 

Based on prior years’ experience, the School’s administration believes that disallowances, if 

any will be immaterial. 

(8) Escrow Account 

As set forth in its charter, the School established an escrow account in September 2013 in the 

amount of $75,000 for the purpose of funding legal and audit fees in the event of 

dissolution. The amount in escrow was $77,647 and $77,564 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, 

respectively. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Board of Trustees 

Niagara Charter School: 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 

Niagara Charter School (the School), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 

30, 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year 

then ended, and the related notes to financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 

October 27, 2021. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 

statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 

internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 

or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 

material misstatement of the School’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 

corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 

deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 

merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 

this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 

not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Niagara Charter School’s financial 

statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 

have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 

compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 

express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and 

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Williamsville, New York 

October 27, 2021 
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Niagara Charter School 
 Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 5,176,814 318,000 - 13,300 - 5,508,114 
Total Expenses 4,777,672 590,505 - 8,300 174,778 5,551,255 

Net Income 399,142 (272,505) - 5,000 (174,778) (43,141) 
Actual Student Enrollment 309 38 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION  OTHER  FUNDRAISING

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL  TOTAL 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2021-2022 

July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 
Niagara Falls City School District $12,227.00                3,814,824                               -                               -                               -                               -                3,814,824 Basic Ed Tuition 
Lockport City School District $11,331.00                   203,958                               -                               -                               -                               -                   203,958 Basic Ed Tuition 
Niagara-Wheatfield School District $11,580.00                   150,540                               -                               -                               -                               -                   150,540 Basic Ed Tuition 
North Tonawanda School District $11,824.00                     11,824                               -                               -                               -                               -                     11,824 Basic Ed Tuition

             Buffalo City School District $13,308.00                     26,616                     26,616 Basic Ed Tuition
             Tonawanda School District $11,259.00                     11,259                               -                               -                               -                               -                     11,259 Basic Ed Tuition

               4,219,021                4,219,021 

Special Education Revenue                               -                   270,000                               -                               -                               -                   270,000 Estimated Revenue from Special Ed Billings 
Grants 

Stimulus                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Other                     15,000                               -                               -                               -                               -                     15,000 Childrens" Institute Grant 

Other State Revenue                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES                4,234,021                   270,000                4,504,021 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs                               -                     48,000                               -                               -                               -                     48,000 Estimated IDEA from Districts 
Title I                   147,965                               -                               -                               -                               -                   147,965 Title IA 
Title Funding - Other                     30,645                               -                               -                               -                               -                     30,645 Title IIA and IVA 
School Food Service (Free Lunch)                     10,000                               -                               -                               -                               -                     10,000 Reimbursement from Buffalo S.D. for Café Labor 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Other                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Other Federal Revenue                   752,553                               -                               -                               -                               -                   752,553 ESSER II ($251,946) & ARP-ESSER ($500,605) 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES                   941,163                     48,000                   989,163 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising                               -                               -                               -                       8,300                               -                       8,300 Various Fundraisers estimated revenue 
Erate Reimbursement                       1,630                               -                               -                               -                               -                       1,630 Per Approved E-Rate contracts 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,                               -                               -                               -                       5,000                               -                       5,000 Estimated Interest, Vending Machine & Misc. 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Food Service (Income from meals)                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Text Book                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Other Local Revenue                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES                       1,630                     13,300                     14,930 

TOTAL REVENUE                5,176,814                   318,000                     13,300                5,508,114 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 
EXPENSES 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management 1.00                   138,052                       9,656                               -                               -                       5,292                   153,000 CAO 
Instructional Management 1.00                     86,819                       6,072                               -                               -                       3,328                     96,219 Assistant CAO 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 3.00                   166,043                     11,614                               -                               -                       6,365                   184,022 Dean, Instructional Coach, Data Coordinator 
CFO / Director of Finance -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Operation / Business Manager 1.50                     31,581                       2,208                               -                               -                       1,211                     35,000 Business Manager (Part-time) and IT Specialist 
Administrative Staff 3.00                   162,895                     11,393                               -                               -                       6,245                   180,533 Office Manager, Parent Coordinator, Clerk 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF                       10                   585,390                     40,943                     22,441                   648,774 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 15.00                   638,580                     44,665                               -                               -                     24,480                   707,725 14 Classroom teachers and Literacy Specialist 
Teachers - SPED 3.00                               -                   179,284                               -                               -                               -                   179,284 Special Ed Teachers 
Substitute Teachers 3.00                     89,168                       6,237                               -                               -                       3,418                     98,823 Full-Time Subs 
Teaching Assistants 12.00                   360,599                     25,222                               -                               -                     13,824                   399,645 Teaching Assistants 
Specialty Teachers 3.00                   147,473                     10,315                               -                               -                       5,653                   163,441 Music, Art and PE Teachers 
Aides -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
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Niagara Charter School 
 Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 5,176,814 318,000 - 13,300 - 5,508,114 
Total Expenses 4,777,672 590,505 - 8,300 174,778 5,551,255 

Net Income 399,142 (272,505) - 5,000 (174,778) (43,141) 
Actual Student Enrollment 309 38 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION  OTHER  FUNDRAISING

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL  TOTAL 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2021-2022 

July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Therapists & Counselors 1.50                     64,802                       4,533                               -                               -                       2,484                     71,819 Counselors 
Other -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL                       38                1,300,622                   270,256                     49,859                1,620,737 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse 1.00                     46,107                       3,225                               -                               -                       1,768                     51,100 
Librarian -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Custodian -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Security -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Other 3.00                     95,163                       6,656                               -                               -                       3,648                   105,467 Cafeteria Manager and 2 Workers 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL                         4                   141,270                       9,881                       5,416                   156,567 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                       51                2,027,282                   321,080                     77,716                2,426,078 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes                   164,210                     26,007                               -                               -                       6,295                   196,512 Social Security/Medicare + FUTA 
Fringe / Employee Benefits                   537,960                     37,627                               -                               -                     20,623                   596,210 Medical, Dental, NYSUI, Disability & W.C. 
Retirement / Pension                   172,870                     10,790                               -                               -                       6,471                   190,131 NYSTRS 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS                   875,040                     74,424                     33,389                   982,853 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                2,902,322                   395,504                   111,105                3,408,931 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit                     25,716                       1,798                               -                               -                          986                     28,500 Accounting Services + Independent Audit 
Legal                     29,325                       2,051                               -                               -                       1,124                     32,500 Estimated Legal Expenses for the year 
Management Company Fee                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Nurse Services                       4,060                          284                               -                               -                          156                       4,500 Per Diem Nursing Services as needed 
Food Service / School Lunch                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Payroll Services                     39,701                       2,777                               -                               -                       1,522                     44,000 Payroll + HR PEO Services 
Special Ed Services                               -                     60,000                               -                               -                               -                     60,000 Buffalo Hearing & Speech 
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)                       9,023                          692                               -                               -                          346                     10,061 Purchased services in Entitlement Grants 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting                     75,928                       5,311                               -                               -                       2,911                     84,150 BOCES/WNYRIC services, Landscaping/Plowing, Trash Pick-Up, Student Hearings 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES                   183,753                     72,913                       7,045                   263,711 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 
Board Expenses                          361                            25                               -                               -                            14                          400 Board Meetings 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials                   174,968                               -                               -                               -                               -                   174,968 Instructional Materials & Supplies 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials                               -                     15,422                               -                               -                               -                     15,422 Special ED materials and supplies 
Textbooks / Workbooks                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Supplies & Materials other                     20,978                       1,467                               -                               -                          804                     23,249 Office, Health Office and Counselor Supplies/Materials 
Equipment / Furniture                     13,524                          946                               -                               -                          518                     14,988 Cafeteria and Classroom Furniture 
Telephone                       9,023                          631                               -                               -                          346                     10,000 Phone/Internet 
Technology                     64,795                       4,532                               -                               -                       2,484                     71,811 Lease costs for computers + Software Costs 
Student Testing & Assessment                       8,391                          609                               -                               -                               -                       9,000 Testing and student assessment costs 
Field Trips                     21,137                       1,863                               -                               -                               -                     23,000 Field Trips 
Transportation (student)                   331,601                     23,193                               -                               -                     12,712                   367,506 Busing costs 
Student Services - other                       9,934                          876                               -                               -                               -                     10,810 Uniforms, Graduation Ceremonies, Yearbooks 
Office Expense                     31,310                       2,190                               -                               -                       1,200                     34,700 Copier costs, Postage, Fingerprinting and other misc. office costs 
Staff Development                   156,362                     10,937                               -                               -                       5,994                   173,293 Various Staff Developments & Annual Contract for EL training 
Staff Recruitment                       4,963                          347                               -                               -                          190                       5,500 Estimate to advertise for staff positions 
Student Recruitment / Marketing                     14,888                       1,041                               -                               -                          571                     16,500 Estimate to advertise for student recruitment 
School Meals / Lunch                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Travel (Staff)                       7,771                          544                               -                               -                          298                       8,613 Conference + Travel + Mileage costs 
Fundraising                               -                               -                               -                       8,300                               -                       8,300 Estimated costs for fundraisers 
Other                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS                   870,006                     64,623                       8,300                     25,131                   968,060 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance                     25,716                       1,799                               -                               -                          985                     28,500 Liability, D&O + Property Insurance 
Janitorial                   126,908                       8,876                               -                               -                       4,866                   140,650 Cleaning Services contracted for the year 
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Niagara Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2021-2022  Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

TOTAL 

5,508,114 
5,551,255 

(43,141) 
-
-

Building and Land Rent / Lease                   537,541                     37,597                               -                               -                     20,607                   595,745 Building Rent costs 
Repairs & Maintenance                     22,440                       1,570                               -                               -                          860                     24,870 Estimated cost for repairs 
Equipment / Furniture                          902                            63                               -                               -                            35                       1,000 Maintenance equipment/replacements 
Security                     34,998                       2,448                               -                               -                       1,342                     38,788 Video, Alarm & Fire Security Systems Monitoring costs 
Utilities                     32,483                       2,272                               -                               -                       1,245                     36,000 Gas, electric, solar and water/sewer 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE                   780,988                     54,625                     29,940                   865,553 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION                     40,603                       2,840                               -                               -                       1,557                     45,000 Depreciation cost on assets for the year 
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - placed under Cash Flow Adjustment in the renewal application. 

TOTAL EXPENSES                4,777,672                   590,505                       8,300                   174,778                5,551,255 

NET INCOME                   399,142                  (272,505)                               -                       5,000                  (174,778)                    (43,141) 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*

Niagara Falls City School District 
Lockport City School District 
Niagara-Wheatfield School District 
North Tonawanda School District 

    Tonawanda School District 
    Buffalo City School District 
TOTAL ENROLLMENT 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 

July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

5,176,814 
4,777,672 

399,142 
309 

-

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

318,000 
590,505 

(272,505) 
38 

-

OTHER 

-
-
-

FUNDRAISING 

13,300 
8,300 
5,000 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

-
174,778 

(174,778) 

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION  OTHER  FUNDRAISING

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL  TOTAL 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

 TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

279 33 312 
15 3 18 
11 2 13 
1 1
1 1
2 2 

309 38 347 

16,753 8,368 -

15,462 15,540 -



2021-2022 School Calendar 
Calendar subject to change 

AUGUST FEBRUARY (18 instructional days) 
30th- Teachers Report 11th- ½ Day 12PM Dismissal 

21st- NO SCHOOL (President’s Day) 
SEPTEMBER (18 instructional days) 22nd- NO SCHOOL 
7th- First Day of School 

MARCH ( 23 instructional days) 
OCTOBER (20 instructional days) 3rd- ½ Day  12PM Dismissal 
8th- NO SCHOOL (Superintendent’s Day) 4th- NO SCHOOL (Superintendent’s Day) 
11th- NO SCHOOL (Columbus Day) 25th- ½ Day 12PM Dismissal 
29th- ½ Day 12PM Dismissal 

APRIL (11 instructional days) 

NOVEMBER (18 instructional days) 11th-22nd-  NO SCHOOL (Spring Break) 
11th- NO SCHOOL (Veterans Day) 25th- School Resumes 

19th- ½ Day 12PM Dismissal 
Parent Teacher Conferences (1-4pm) MAY (21 instructional days) 
24th- 26th- NO SCHOOL (Fall Break) 27th- ½ Day 12PM Dismissal 

31st- NO SCHOOL (Memorial Day) 

DECEMBER (16 instructional days) JUNE (15 instructional days) 
10th- ½ Day 12pm Dismissal 3rd- NO SCHOOL (Superintendent’s Day) 
23rd-31st- NO SCHOOL (Winter Break) 16th- ½ Day 12PM Dismissal 

17th- ½ Day 12PM Dismissal 
JANUARY (20 instructional days) 20th- NO SCHOOL (Juneteenth) 
3rd- School Resumes 21st- ½ Day 12 PM Dismissal 
17th- NO SCHOOL (Martin Luther King 22nd- ½ Day 12 PM Dismissal/Tentative Last 
Day) Day of School 

*Please refer to the monthly calendar for school events to be announced. 

















































































































































 
                                                                        
                                              

                                      

Niagara Charter School 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

2021 2020 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents  $  2,090,295  $  2,963,129 
Grants and contracts receivable - -
Accounts receivables 569,976 136,881 
Prepaid Expenses                           44,744                           60,065 
Contributions and other receivables                                     -                                     - 
Other current assets                                     -                                     - 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS                     2,705,015                     3,160,075 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net  $  421,874  $  478,180 
Restricted Cash                                     -                                     - 
Security Deposits                                     -                                     - 
Other Non-Current Assets                                     -                                     - 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS                        421,874                        478,180 

TOTAL ASSETS 3,126,889 3,638,255 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $  27,738  $  43,490 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits                        449,374                        383,968 
Current Portion of Loan Payable                                     -                                     - 
Due to Related Parties                                     -                                     - 
Refundable Advances                                     -                                     - 
Deferred Revenue                                     -                                     - 
Other Current Liabilities                                     -                                     - 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES                        477,112                        427,458 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year  $                                 -  $  530,085 
Deferred Rent                                     -                                     - 
Due to Related Party                                     -                                     - 
Other Long-Term Liabilities                                     -                                     - 

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES                                     -                        530,085 

TOTAL LIABILITIES                        477,112                        957,543 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted  $  2,649,777  $  2,680,712 
Temporarily restricted                                     -                                     - 
Permanently restricted                                     -                                     - 

TOTAL NET ASSETS                     2,649,777                     2,680,712 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS                     3,126,889                     3,638,255 



  
 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Niagara Charter School 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30 

 Unrestricted
2021 

 Temporarily 
Restricted

 Total
2020
 Total 

OPERATING REVENUE
 State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed
 State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED
 State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue
Federal Grants

 State and City Grants
 Other Operating Income
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

 $  3,973,669 
                     261,488 
                                  - 
                 1,237,954 
                                  - 
                       26,159 
                                  - 
                 5,499,270 

 $                              - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 

 $  3,973,669 
                     261,488 
                                  - 
                 1,237,954 
                                  - 
                       26,159 
                                  - 
                 5,499,270 

 $  4,251,110 
                     287,669 
                                  - 
                     233,017 
                                  - 
                       46,246 
                                  - 
                 4,818,042 

EXPENSES 
Program Services

 Regular Education
 Special Education
 Other Programs

Total Program Services
Management and general
Fundraising
TOTAL EXPENSES

 $  4,989,912 
                     349,014 
                                  - 
                 5,338,926 
                     191,279 
                                  - 
                 5,530,205 

 $                              - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 

 $  4,989,912 
                     349,014 
                                  - 
                 5,338,926 
                     191,279 
                                  - 
                 5,530,205 

 $  4,087,785 
                     264,622 
                                  - 
                 4,352,407 
                     150,824 
                                  - 
                 4,503,231 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS                      (30,935)                                   -                      (30,935)                      314,811 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income

 Contributions and Grants
 Fundraising Support
 Investments
Donated Services
Other Support and Revenue

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE

 $                              - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 

 $                              - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 

 $                              - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 

 $                              - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 

 Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal of Assets  $                              -  $                              -  $                              -  $                              - 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS                      (30,935)                                   -                      (30,935)                      314,811 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

 $  2,680,712 
                                  - 

 $                              - 
                                  - 

 $  2,680,712 
                                  - 

 $  2,365,901 
                                  - 

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR  $  2,649,777  $                              -  $  2,649,777  $  2,680,712 



                                                                                                       
                                                                          
                                                                                                      
                                                                                
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      

Niagara Charter School 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30 

2021 2020 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Revenues from School Districts 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from School Districts 
Depreciation 
Grants Receivable 
Due from NYS 
Grant revenues
Prepaid Expenses
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Accrued Liabilities
Contributions and fund-raising activities
Miscellaneous sources
Deferred Revenue
Interest payments
Grant income - paycheck protection program
Other

 $  (30,935)
-

(433,095) 
-

56,306 
-
-

                                                   - 
                                        15,321 
                                       (15,752)
                                        65,406 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 
                                     (530,085)
                                                   - 

 $  314,811 
-

131,002 
-

64,329 
-
-

                                                   - 
                                         (4,989) 
                                     (127,830) 
                                       (49,288) 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  $  (872,834)  $  328,035 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment
Other

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 $ 

 $

                                                   - 
                                                   - 

                                                - 

 $ 

 $  

                                       (44,858) 
                                      530,085 

485,227 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt
Other

 $ 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 

 $ 
                                                   - 
                                                   - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  $                                                -  $                                                - 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

 $  

 $  

(872,834)
                                   2,963,129 

2,090,295 

 $  

 $  

813,262 
                                   2,149,867 

2,963,129 



      

                   
                 
                 

 

  

Niagara Charter School 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30 

2021 2020 

No. of Positions Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special Other Education 

Education 
Total Fundraising 

Supporting Services 
Management and 

General 
Total Total 

Personnel Services Costs
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes
Retirement
Management Company Fees
Legal Service
Accounting / Audit Services
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services
Building and Land Rent / Lease
Repairs & Maintenance
Insurance
Utilities
Supplies / Materials
Equipment / Furnishings
Staff Development
Marketing  / Recruitment
Technology
Food Service 

2.00
41.00
10.00

                  53.00 

 $
              507,465 
           1,494,653 
                 86,421 
           2,088,539 
              587,160 
              156,616 
                           - 
                 23,928 
                 18,683 
              338,175 

              526,773 
              248,440 
                 26,291 
                 34,447 
              270,834 
                           - 
                 99,561 
                 16,963 
                   9,983 
                           - 

 $
                 35,066 
              103,281 
                   5,972 
              144,319 
                 40,573 
                 10,822 
                           - 
                   1,653 
                   1,291 
                 23,368 

                 36,400 
                 17,167 
                   1,817 
                   2,380 
                 18,715 
                           - 
                   6,880 
                   1,172 
                      689 
                           - 

 $
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 

                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 

 $
                 542,531 
             1,597,934 
                   92,393 
             2,232,858 
                 627,733 
                 167,438 
                             - 
                   25,581 
                   19,974 
                 361,543 

                 563,173 
                 265,607 
                   28,108 
                   36,827 
                 289,549 
                             - 
                 106,441 
                   18,135 
                   10,672 
                             - 

 $
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 

                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 

 $
                   21,276 
                   62,664 
                     3,623 
                   87,563 
                   24,617 
                     6,566 
                             - 
                     1,004 
                        783 
                   14,178 

                   22,085 
                   10,416 
                     1,102 
                     1,444 
                   11,355 
                             - 
                     4,174 
                        711 
                        419 
                             - 

 $
                   21,276 
                   62,664 
                     3,623 
                   87,563 
                   24,617 
                     6,566 
                             - 
                     1,004 
                        783 
                   14,178 

                   22,085 
                   10,416 
                     1,102 
                     1,444 
                   11,355 
                             - 
                     4,174 
                        711 
                        419 
                             - 

 $
                 563,807 
             1,660,598 
                   96,016 
             2,320,421 
                 652,350 
                 174,004 
                             - 
                   26,585 
                   20,757 
                 375,721 

                 585,258 
                 276,023 
                   29,210 
                   38,271 
                 300,904 
                             - 
                 110,615 
                   18,846 
                   11,091 
                             - 

 $ 
                 422,243 
             1,442,875 
                 107,137 
             1,972,255 
                 581,405 
                 142,157 
                             - 
                   28,793 
                   19,256 
                 155,081 

                 581,828 
                 235,939 
                   45,705 
                   52,417 
                   71,101 
                             - 
                   98,719 
                   19,715 
                   10,004 
                             - 

Student Services
Office Expense
Depreciation
OTHER

              264,984 
                 32,921 
                 50,679 
              194,935 

                 20,920 
                   2,275 
                   3,502 
                 15,071 

                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 

                 285,904 
                   35,196 
                   54,181 
                 210,006 

                             -  = 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 

                     1,380 
                     2,125 
                     1,357 

                             - 
                     1,380 
                     2,125 
                     1,357 

                 285,904 
                   36,576 
                   56,306 
                 211,363 

                   35,028 
                   37,961 
                   64,329 
                 351,538 

Total Expenses  $  4,989,912  $  349,014  $  -  $  5,338,926  $  -  $  191,279  $  191,279  $  5,530,205  $  4,503,231 
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